
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA                                                 ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 
 

This agenda may contain confidential and privileged material for the sole use of UGC Members. 
 

Undergraduate Council (UGC) 

Wednesday, January 28, 2015, 3:00pm-4:30pm 

LOCATION SE 300 

All documents available on the UGC1415 UCMCROPS site 

              
 

I. Chair’s Report – Jack Vevea         5 min 
A. DivCo Meeting – January 21, 2015 

 
II. Consent Calendar 

A. Approval of the Agenda 
B. Approval of the December 10 Meeting Minutes (pp. 3-7) 

 
III. 1/9/2015 BOARS Meeting– Vice Chair Viney      10 min 

 BOARS redacted agenda (p. 8) 
 

IV. Update on 1/26/15 PROC Meeting – Vice Chair Viney and Dr. Kelvin Lwin  5 min 
 PROC Agenda (pp. 9-11) 

Access to hyperlinked documents is restricted to PROC members. 
 

V. Update on General Education Program Review – GESC Chair Zanzucchi  10 min 
http://senate.ucmerced.edu/node/344 
 

VI. Update on Grade Appeals Policy – Dr. Anne Zanzucchi     10 min 
Members: Elizabeth Whitt, Anne Zanzucchi, Carrie Menke, Christopher Viney, Charles Nies  

 
VII. Revised Proposal for a Minor in Community and Research in Service    20 min 

The original proposal was reviewed in Fall 2014 by Standing Senate Committees,  
the VPDUE, the ALO, and the Provost.  
SSHA submitted a revised proposal based on comments it had received.  
UGC 10/29/14 memo and original CRS proposal are available on crops, in the 1/28/15 meeting folder. 
 
 Revised Proposal (pp. 12-75) 
 Faculty’s summarized response (pp. 76-77) 
 CAPRA Comments  (pp. 78-80) 
 COR Comments (pp. 81-82) 
 FWDAF Comments (p. 83) 
 GC and ALO Martin had no objections or comments (pp. 84-85) 

 

http://senate.ucmerced.edu/committees/undergraduate-council-ugc
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/committees/boars/documents/BOARS1-9-15agenda.pdf
http://senate.ucmerced.edu/node/344


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA                                                 ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 
 

This agenda may contain confidential and privileged material for the sole use of UGC Members. 
 

Action: Discuss Proposal and send comments to Senate Chair. A deadline of January 26 was requested. 
The Senate Director was informed that UGC comments within the proposed deadline would not be 
possible.   

 
VIII. Expansion of Admissions Subcommittee Charge       10 min 

 Descriptions of UC Admissions Committees (pp. 86-90)  
Membership was revised at the last meeting to include the BOARS representative.  
Action requested: Revise Subcommittee’s Charge and approve draft at the next UGC meeting 

    
IX. Discussion: Reading, Review/Recitation Week (RRR Week)    10 min 

UCB’s policy (pp. 91-100) 
UCB Registrar’s website  
http://registrar.berkeley.edu/CalendarDisp.aspx?terms=2013D 
 

 
X. Executive Session (if necessary)  

https://ucmcrops.ucmerced.edu/access/content/group/c37ff3ee-c972-4e6d-bf23-062aa4274525/1.28.15/UCB%20RRR%20Week.pdf
http://registrar.berkeley.edu/CalendarDisp.aspx?terms=2013D


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA                                       ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 
 

1 
 

 Undergraduate Council (UGC) 
 

Draft Minutes 

Wednesday, December 10, 2014 

              
 

I. Chair’s Report – Jack Vevea         
Chair Vevea could not attend the December 3 Division Council. GE Subcommittee Chair 
Zanzucchi attended on his behalf and reported the following: 
 
- VCPB Dan Feitelberg gave a presentation on the 2020 Project and there were 

considerable conversations about debts and spending, space planning etc. There was 
also some discussion about making the best use of space.  

- COR’s recommendation to DivCo that a Standing Library and Scholarly 
Communications Committee be promptly established. This could be a COR 
subcommittee or a task force. COR will write a proposal about it.  

- Discussion about possible participation of Emeriti Faculty in Senate Committees. 
 

II. Consent Calendar 
The agenda and the November 12 Meeting Minutes were approved as presented. 

 
III. BOARS – December 5 Meeting – Vice Chair Viney 
 Nonresident Outcomes and Compare Favorably Reports – BOARS requested that 

BOARS members collaborate with their respective Admissions Committees and 
Admissions Offices to provide an assessment of the extent to which the compare 
favorably rule is being met with regard to nonresident admission. Comments are due to 
BOARS by 1/31/15. 

 
 Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) – The NGSS promote a way of teaching 

and learning that allows students to experience science by applying their knowledge, 
not just learn about it from textbooks. High Schools teachers are considering a 
modification of their courses to better align with the NGSS. BOARS may reconsider a 
realignment of the “d” area requirement to match closely the NGSS expectations. 

 
 Data on Honors-type College Courses – UCOP is collecting data related to the use of 

AP, IB and Honors courses and how they affect students’ performance.  
 
 Confidentiality of BOARS agendas and meeting packets – In response to a question 

from Vice Chair Viney, BOARS responded that they prefer that agendas and supporting 
materials remain internal. Agendas that are typically published on the BOARS website 
are redacted.  

33

http://senate.ucmerced.edu/committees/undergraduate-council-ugc
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/committees/boars/


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA                                       ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 
 

2 
 

IV. Admissions Updates 
 Guest: Chon Ruiz, Director, Office of Admissions 

A. Update on 11/24 Admissions Subcommittee Meeting 
The Admissions Subcommittee convened on November 24. Discussion items included 
management of the referral pool, enrollment targets.  Meeting notes are available on 
UGC Crops site. 
 
B. Expansion of Subcommittee Membership and Charge 
Action requested: Endorse addition of BOARS representative to the membership of the 
subcommittee and consider expanding the charge of the subcommittee. 
Current “charge”: The subcommittee works with the Office of Admissions at UCM and 
UCOP and serves as advisor on policies related to admissions and awarding of Regents 
Scholarships. 

 
Most systemwide BOARS representatives at sister campuses are members of their 
campus’s CUARS (equivalent of Admissions Subcommittee). The addition of the BOARS 
representative to the UCM Admissions Subcommittee would facilitate the work with 
BOARS and is in keeping with UGC’s plan to expand the Admissions Subcommittee.  

 
A motion was made, seconded, and unanimously carried to endorse the addition of the 
BOARS representative to the membership of the Admissions Subcommittee.  

 
The Admissions Subcommittee is in the process of revising its charge. Senate Analyst 
will provide a comparison of the charges of the various Admissions Committees across 
the system. 

 
C. Update on Admissions Data – Interim VCSA Nies  
UCOP will send a press release related to admissions data.  
The campus’s target was 17000 applications and it has received 17608 for freshman 
students. Transfer students’ applications: 2321 (the target was 2000). The overall number 
of applicants is 19929 which represents over a 14% increase from last year. The numbers 
of out-of-state and international students have also increased.  

 
V. GE Subcommittee Update – Chair Zanzucchi 

The subcommittee main goals are to: a) build capacity for GE through outreach 
activities; b) prepare for the Program Review site visit scheduled to take place in early 
February. The subcommittee is also in the process of working with PROC on suggesting 
guidelines for the external review team. Currently, GE members have been reaching out 
to Bylaw Chairs to encourage engagement. Laura Martin and Jane Lawrence are 
working with SATAL to hear mainly from seniors about their aspirations for GE.  

 
VI. Grade Appeals Subcommittee – Dr. Carrie Menke 

Members: Elizabeth Whitt, Anne Zanzucchi, Carrie Menke, Christopher Viney 

44

https://ucmcrops.ucmerced.edu/access/content/group/c37ff3ee-c972-4e6d-bf23-062aa4274525/12.10.14%20_KL362_/Admissions/Admissions%20Subcommittee%20Meeting_Notes11%2024%2014.docx


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA                                       ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 
 

3 
 

The subcommittee met on December 5. Dr. Menke provided the following update: The 
subcommittee is working on drafting a policy that accounts for cases when non-
academic criteria are used. The subcommittee has a basic foundation and made progress 
with introducing criteria. Subcommittee is also trying to write a policy that accounts for 
procedures as well as non-academic criteria. The subcommittee is also consulting with 
GC and General Counsel.  

 
A request was made and endorsed to add Interim VCSA Nies to the membership.  

 
VII. Proposal for SNS and SSHA Undergraduate Chairs Two-Year Pilot Program  

VPDUE Whitt provided some context and the motivations for this proposal: one 
immediate impetus was that the faculty in SOE voted last spring to have undergraduate 
chairs in their major programs. In SNS and SSHA, there are undergraduate leads and 
FAOs, and conversations started about the possibilities for similar positions in SNS and 
in SSHA. There are also some external factors, for example, WSCUC’s very strong 
emphasis on undergraduate learning outcomes, undergraduate competencies, and 
concerns about retention and time to degree. All these elements created a platform to 
help provide some institutional coordination of multiple efforts with regards to 
undergraduate students’ success. This program also provides an opportunity to formally 
recognize the work that is already being done by faculty, and offers opportunities to 
connect members of the administration with faculty who work with undergraduate 
students in the majors and in the schools.  

 
VPDUE and ALO proposed to the Deans and the Provost/EVC this program as a two-
year pilot program. It will be evaluated and, if in the end the consensus is that this is not 
a viable program, then it will not be implemented. The graduate programs’ and the SOE 
undergraduate programs’ structures were used as a model with the goal of combining 
all responsibilities under the undergraduate program chairs’ umbrellas. In AY 13-14 
funds were allocated to provide a one-time stipend to the FAOs. Funding for this 
program is provided by the Provost’s Office and the program is focused only on majors.  

 
This pilot proposal does not anticipate particular academic organizational structures; it 
is not intended to determine any academic structures; and aims at organizing 
responsibilities. There would be 21 undergraduate chairs. 

 
VPDUE and ALO met with 24 faculty members and invited all SNS and SSHA FAOs to 
provide feedback on the proposal and subsequently revised it based on comments from 
faculty. The proposal was revised to propose two options: 1) a combined undergraduate 
chair/FAO and 2) a split FAO and undergraduate chair with separate but integrated 
responsibilities. VPDUE and ALO will manage the evaluation of the pilot in 
coordination with AP and Bylaw Unit Chairs.  

 
 

55



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA                                       ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 
 

4 
 

VPDUE summarized the feedback she has received from faculty: 
 

Pros: 
- With the current emphasis on graduate education and in the context of the Strategic 

Academic Focusing conversations, some are concerned that the campus could lose sight 
of the undergraduates. This proposal offers a way to prevent it.   

- Recognizes work that is already being done. 
- Provides stipends to faculty. 
- Raises the profile of undergraduate education. 

 
Cons: 

- Potential for splitting attention: could this proposal lead to the disconnection of the 
undergraduate aspects of a major?  

- Possible overlap of responsibilities of the undergraduate chairs and those of AP or BL 
unit chairs.   

- Increased workloads for assistant professors and L(P)SOEs, particularly as this pilot 
does not allow for course release. 

Potential for splitting – could this in fact disconnect undergrad disciplines 
o One of the themes was importance of communication and collaboration 
o Concern about whether responsibilities of UGC chairs and BL chairs  identified 

overlap 
 

UGC Comments: 
A member was concerned about this proposal only applying to majors and it is not clear 
how programs like GASP would be recognized and managed under this structure. 
The benefit is that this is a two-year pilot which will allow UGC to identify the pros and 
cons of this proposal in two years.  

 
A concern was raised regarding this program as one model does not fit all majors. For 
example, the Biology major has 1500 students which represent a considerable task for 
one person to manage. It would be useful to provide some flexibility and possibly 
multiple leads for large majors. Proposal might not be adequate for BIO and may lead to 
failure if there is no flexibility to adapt the functionalities of the position.  

 
VPDUE noted that programs have the option of opting out of the program. 

 
Action: Senate Analyst will draft a memo summarizing UGC’s comments.  

 
VIII. Requests from Provost/EVC Peterson 

A. Steering Committee for WSCUC Reaffirmation of Accreditation 
The Provost requested a UGC representative to serve on the Steering Committee for 
WSCUC Reaffirmation Accreditation. The term of service is three years. The committee 

66



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA                                       ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 
 

5 
 

will report to the Provost and will oversee, coordinate, and ensure successful completion 
of all aspects of UC Merced’s reaffirmation of accreditation process. 

 
Chair Vevea asked members to contact him and Senate Analyst, if interested in serving.  

 
B. Task Force on University Honors  

UGC Chair Vevea and Member Mario Sifuentez have agreed to serve on this task force.  
 
IX. Request from PROC: Revisions to the Undergraduate (and Graduate) Academic 

Program Review Policies  
In its 12/5/14 memo, PROC recommended that the UGC and GC Policy Subcommittees 
each join the PROC Subcommittee for collaborative revisions of the undergraduate and 
graduate program review policies. PROC asked UGC (and GC) to endorse one of the 
following three possible approaches to advancing the revision process: 
a) The UGC and GC Policy Subcommittees each join the PROC Subcommittee for 
collaborative revisions of the undergraduate and graduate program review policies. 
b) That GC and UGC Policy Subcommittees themselves undertake all revisions, or 
c) The GC and UGC Policy Subcommittees vest the PROC Subcommittee, which is co-
chaired by GC vice-chair Dawson and UGC vice-chair Viney, with the authority to 
undertake major revisions. 

 
UGC members unanimously recommended option a) “The UGC and GC Policy 
Subcommittees each join the PROC Subcommittee for collaborative revisions of the 
undergraduate and graduate program review policies”.  

 
Action: Senate Analyst will draft a memo on behalf of UGC for transmittal to PROC.  

 
X. Executive Session 

No minutes are taken in executive session. 
 

Upcoming Business: UGC to consider the establishment of a dead week.  
 

77



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA ACADEMIC SENATE 
BOARD OF ADMISSIONS AND RELATIONS WITH SCHOOLS (BOARS) 

 

Notice of Teleconference Meeting 
 

Friday, January 9, 2015 
10:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 

 
AGENDA  

                                                                         
  

I. Consent Calendar 
 BOARS draft minutes of December 5, 2014 
 

Action Requested: Approve consent Calendar. 
 

II. Announcements  
o Ralph Aldredge, BOARS Chair  

 III. Consultation with Academic Senate Leadership 
o Mary Gilly, Academic Senate Chair  
o Dan Hare, Academic Senate Vice Chair 

 

Senate leaders discuss current issues before the Senate. 
 

IV. Consultation with UCOP – Office of Admissions  
o Stephen Handel, Associate Vice President, Undergraduate Admissions 
o Michael Treviño, Director of Undergraduate Admissions  
o Monica Lin, Associate Director of Undergraduate Admissions  
o Adam Parker, Admissions Policy Coordinator  

V.  Annual Report on Undergraduate Admissions Requirements and 
Comprehensive Review 
 

 VI. Review of Statway Course 
 

 
 VII. Campus Reports  

 
 

 
 
 

 

88



PROC Agenda 
January 26, 2015, 1:00-2:30pm 

Location – KL232 
Call Number: 1-866-740-1260 Access code: 7244980 

 
I. Announcements – Co-Chairs Peterson and Ricci      5 min 

 
II. Principles of Assessment - Professor Mike Dawson      15 min 

 
III. Global Arts Program (GASP) request to change Annual PLO Assessment Report   10 min 

from March 1 to July 31, 2015 – CIA/ALO Martin 
A. Action Requested: Approval of GASP request 
B. Discussion: Consider process for handling similar requests in the future.  

 
IV. Administrative Reviews – CIA/ALO Martin      15 min 

Action Requested: Review the current administrative review schedule (pp. 4-5) and revise as 
needed 

 
V. Undergraduate Academic Program Reviews – Co-Chairs Peterson and Ricci  30 min 

A. General Education 
 GESC Memo to PROC (pp. 6-13) 

Action Requested: Authorize distribution of self-study to groups identified in the 1/21 GESC’s 
memo. 
pp. 14-15 of the policy: “CONFIDENTIALITY: Undergraduate Program Reviews will be treated 
with confidentiality until they are closed. The self-study, the review team report, and the final 
implementation plan are open to examination after the Review is closed. The results of student 
and faculty surveys are available only in summary form. Particular documents and sections of 
the report may be maintained as confidential documents available only as needed for particular 
reasons at the request of either the Program or the PRC. Petitions to review confidential 
material will be reviewed by the PRC.”  
 

B. Management  
 Program self-study  (pp.14-58) 
  Review Team Report (pp. 59-67) 
 Corrections to the Report provided by FAO (pp. 68-69) 
 Economics and Management Faculty Response to the Review Team Report (pp. 70-81) 

 
Action Requested: Review program’s response and determine if it adequately addresses the 
review team recommendations. Send recommendation to UGC.  
Relevant section of the program review policy (p. 14):“The program response, including the 
action plan, are both approved by the Dean, and submitted to the PRC by the end of November. 
When the PRC determines that the response adequately addresses the concerns of the report, it 

99

http://assessment.ucmerced.edu/sites/assessment.ucmerced.edu/files/page/documents/adminperiodicreviewschedule_revised_1.8.2013_per_sacap_0.pdf
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/nizef9doas39rmcd9avk5otwga9ngjz8
http://senate.ucmerced.edu/sites/senate.ucmerced.edu/files/public/UG_ProgramReviewPolicyFinal.pdf
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/d0slq2mi28j91i92zzs9y840ez5t8v48
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/98fnyd48aoao4h9i75wg5tny8d0lbpbk
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/l7f20kl7a09qhufhv9ks3n21b1nv7as0
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/o8hlfdrad27yh3b19p5yz26saq1mesxy


proposes to UGC that the Program Review be closed. A Program Review is not closed until the 
PRC agrees that the response to the review is adequate. If a review is not closed, the PRC and 
UGC may implement curricular sanctions, and may recommend administrative sanctions to the 
Dean and EVC. Sanctions may include a moratorium on faculty appointments, undergraduate 
admissions or other actions. In the following months, the recommendations will be 
implemented as appropriate through revisions to the Program Strategic Plan, the Dean’s budget 
requests to the EVC/Provost, and any revisions of policy/ies and program(s) that are submitted 
to UGC.” 
 

C. Psychology  
 Self-Study (pp. 82-289) 
 Review Team Report (pp. 290-295) 
 Corrections from the PSYCH faculty (p. 296) 

The Senate has received the review team report and corrections from the Psychology faculty. As 
stated in the program review policy, “After the review team report is received, the PRC Chair will 
send a copy to the program coordinator. The Program Chair will have the opportunity to review 
the report for factual inaccuracies and misperceptions; any corrections should be submitted to 
the PRC within two weeks. The PRC will forward the review team report, along with any 
corrections submitted by the program, to UGC. UGC will receive the report, and forward it to the 
Chair of the Program, the relevant Dean, the VPUE, the EVC, and any other relevant parties.” 
Action Requested: PROC forwards the review team report and Committee comments to UGC. 
 

D. Chemistry 
 Self-Study and Appendices  (pp. 297-461) 
 Review Team Report (pp. 462-471) 
 Faculty’s Response (pp.472-476) 
 Dean’s Response (p. 477) 
 UGC Memo to PROC (9/25/14) (p. 478) 
 PROC Response to UGC  (11/18/14) (p. 479) 
 UGC Memo to PROC (1/22/15) (pp. 480-481) 

PROC recommended that the CHEM review be closed with the provision that the program 
faculty and SNS Dean re-engage in discussing the review team recommendations and report 
back to PROC. In its memo dated 1/22, UGC recommended that the review not be closed.  
Action Requested: Discuss UGC’s response and plan of action for this review.  

 
E. Earth Systems Science (ESS)  

On 10/28/13, ES was notified of review and was asked to submit its self-study by 3/3/14. The 
self-study has not been submitted. 
In response to a request for an update on this review, the ES faculty wrote:  
“The ESS undergrad program review did not happen last year because we had no staff 
support in SNS to gather data (no staff assessment manager).  SNS has just hired someone 

1010

https://ucmerced.box.com/s/iaf1mqf8sn4hjhps8jmq
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/28adbrb2s5ne5286giyp
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/2bka44348zmk3szwe2utvjvxcuw8wsct
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/y4e03pt151kl7a53ic9v
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/9rbukt7iqq05wgu5rgnhjoautr6o3nl0
https://ucmerced.box.com/s/4t1i5i42vopl7adkok755a2ppx5ckq52


for this position. […] I suggest simply re-starting the process from the beginning since no 
data was assembled last AY.” 
Action Requested: Send second notification to program.  

 
VI. Executive Session – PROC Members Only Please     15 min 

 

1111



1212



1313



1414



1515



1616



1717



1818



1919



2020



2121



2222



2323



2424



2525



2626



2727



2828



2929



3030



3131



3232



3333



3434



3535



3636



3737



3838



3939



4040



4141



4242



4343



4444



4545



4646



4747



4848



4949



5050



5151



5252



5353



5454



5555



5656



5757



5858



5959



6060



6161



6262



6363



6464



6565



6666



6767



6868



6969



7070



7171



7272



7373



7474



7575



UGC 1/28/15 Meeting – CRS Faculty Summary Response re: Revised CRS Proposal (received on 
12/12/14) 

 
1.      Potential problems launching the minor with CORE 1, a course that is already required, 

and how to prevent students from “double dipping” a course to satisfy two requirements, 
given that the CRS Minor is based almost entirely on existing GE and major coursework 
(with the exception of CRS 195)  

            To address this comment, we have eliminated CORE 1 as the lower-division course for 
the minor and instead propose CRS 010: Introduction to Community Engaged Research.  The 
course will be taught be an Community Research and Service Academic Coordinator who will 
have a 33% academic appointment to teach the course in Fall and Spring.  The Academic 
Coordinator will be responsible for advising students in the minor , marketing, and assessing the 
minor. Further the person will be a resource for faculty who are teaching the community-
engaged research field experiences.  Funds for this position have been committed by SSHA, 
Office of Research, and the UCM Blum Center. 

2.      Concerns about large student enrollment for CORE 1 and the impact on its sustainability 
and on the students’ academic achievement. Transfer students have the potential to 
impact CORE 1’s scope, both in terms of enrollment and design (since CORE 1 is by 
policy and practice a first-year course). 

            See above.   

3.      Requirements for the proposed minor include CRS 195 or equivalent SSHA disciplinary 
195’s and Engineering 197.  It is unclear what mechanisms are in place in the Schools to 
avoid double counting the courses.  How will some classes apply to fulfill the units for the 
major and the required units for the minor? 

            The hiring of a Community Research and Service Academic Coordinator will address this 
issue.  The Academic Coordinator will coordinate with academic advisors in the three schools to 
ensure that students minoring in CRS are counting their courses correctly. This person will also 
work with CRS faculty advisors to update the list of courses that can count for the minor.  

4.      Faculty teaching credit.  We request a description and analysis of how faculty teaching 
credit in the program will be managed. 

                        Because workload policy is decided at the school level, not at the level of 
academic programs, we are not able to comment on how the         teaching of community-based 
undergraduate research experiences will count for faculty.  We know that these courses are 
already routinely being taught by faculty who are committed to providing undergraduate research 
experiences.  The CRS minor will recognize faculty effort by providing $2000 research stipends 
and also staff support (for example, through the Academic Coordinator) each semester to those 
faculty who teach CRS relevant undergraduate research experiences. Initially we anticipate being 
able to support a maximum of 5 courses per semester [5 x $2,000 = $10,000]. If the minimum 
number of enrolled students in these courses is 8—then a minimum of 40 students per 
semester/80 students per year will be engaged in the CRS field experience.  

7676



UGC 1/28/15 Meeting – CRS Faculty Summary Response re: Revised CRS Proposal (received on 
12/12/14) 

 
5.      Like the Provost, UGC notes that results of the vote in SSHA could lead the reader to 

believe that there was very low faculty buy-in, although information from SSHA 
leadership suggests that the response rate is not atypical.  Clear evidence of faculty 
interest in participation would strengthen the proposal. 

            We understand that UGC has been apprised of the SSHA voting procedures wherein this 
item was considered a consent item unless faculty objected to the proposal.  We are confident 
that the CRS minor has support of our HWC and broader SSHA faculty colleagues. 

6.      There are some resource concerns about the administration and management of the 
program. Although the proposers state that external funding will be provided to help 
launch the minor, it is unclear if an alternative plan (such as limiting the growth of the 
program) is in place if funding does not come through or is insufficient. 

            SSHA, Office of Research, and the UCM Blum Center have made commitments to fund 
the launch of the minor. 

7.      The program’s long-term expansion plans are not clear and need to be described in 
more detail. 

            We anticipate a successful minor. However, we do not have immediate plans to expand 
beyond the approximately 80 students per year that the minor hopes to serve. Long-term 
expansion will depend on the results of programmatic assessment and review of the success of 
the minor as well as available funds.  We do see this minor as having the potential to be a 
signature of undergraduate education at UC Merced. 
 

7777



U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A ,  M E R C E D  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACADEMIC SENATE, MERCED DIVISION UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED 
COMMITTEE ON ACADEMIC PLANNING AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION 5200 NORTH LAKE ROAD 
ANNE KELLEY, CHAIR MERCED, CA  95344 
amkelley@ucmerced.edu (209) 228-4369; fax (209) 228-7955 

 

 

BERKELEY  •  DAVIS  •  IRVINE  •  LOS ANGELES  •  MERCED  •  RIVERSIDE  •  SAN DIEGO  •  SAN FRANCISCO

 
    SANTA  BARBARA   •   SANTA CRUZ

 

 
 
January 23, 2015 
 
 
To:  Jian-Qiao Sun, Chair, Division Council 
 
  
From: Anne Kelley, Chair, Committee on Academic Planning and Resource Allocation  Anne Kelley 

 (CAPRA)    
 
Re:  CAPRA’s Comments on Revised Community Research & Service Minor 
 
Per Division Council’s request, CAPRA reviewed SSHA’s revised proposal to establish a minor in 
Community Research and Service.   
 
CAPRA was pleased to see that its two main concerns in the original proposal (attached) regarding 
faculty teaching workload and resources surrounding the unresolved strategic academic focusing 
initiative were addressed.   
 
While CAPRA still has minor concerns about teaching workload and the distribution of the $2,000 
faculty stipends, the committee endorses the revised proposal.  We believe that this minor is a creative 
endeavor and will be beneficial to students in all three schools, especially in light of the campus being 
granted classification for community engagement by the Carnegie Foundation.  
 
 
 
 
cc: CAPRA Members 
 DivCo Members 
 Senate office  
 

 

 
7878



U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A ,  M E R C E D  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACADEMIC SENATE, MERCED DIVISION UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED 
COMMITTEE ON ACADEMIC PLANNING AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION 5200 NORTH LAKE ROAD 
ANNE KELLEY, CHAIR MERCED, CA  95344 
amkelley@ucmerced.edu (209) 228-4369; fax (209) 228-7955 

 

 

BERKELEY  •  DAVIS  •  IRVINE  •  LOS ANGELES  •  MERCED  •  RIVERSIDE  •  SAN DIEGO  •  SAN FRANCISCO

 
    SANTA  BARBARA   •   SANTA CRUZ

 

 
 
May 6, 2014 
 
 
To:  Ignacio López-Calvo, Chair, Division Council 
 
  
From: Anne Kelley, Chair, Committee on Academic Planning and Resource Allocation  Anne Kelley 

 (CAPRA)    
 
Re:  CAPRA’s Comments on Proposed Community Research & Service Minor 
 
Per Division Council’s request, CAPRA reviewed SSHA’s proposed minor in Community Research and 
Service.  A majority of CAPRA supports the establishment of the minor but has the following comments: 
 
The minor requires a minimum of four units of CRS 195, a research/service learning course (upper-
division research or service learning may substitute for it).  This type of course is faculty time-intensive, 
and it seems that having several dozen students in this minor will either greatly increase the teaching 
burden on the SSHA faculty or require that new faculty be hired to support this minor.  It is not clear 
whether faculty will receive teaching credit for CRS 195, and if so, how much.   CAPRA would like to see 
a clear statement of the number of faculty who will be participating in the 195 course, the number of 
students each of these faculty will be expected to supervise, and whether this 195 supervision will be in 
addition to or in place of the faculty members’ other teaching assignments.   
 
CAPRA also notes the statement in the proposal “For the first two years we have resources committed to 
accommodate a maximum of 80 minors each year. As part of Strategic Academic Focusing we are 
requesting resources to expand the capacity beyond that amount. This will be for resources 
administering, advising, and staffing the minor.”   However, we do not yet know which research foci 
have been identified as “strategic” by the Strategic Academic Focusing working group. Finally, there is 
also a question of other kinds of resources SSHA will need in order to connect the students with the 
community groups with which they are supposed to be interacting.   
 
Some CAPRA members believe that the minor has sufficient short-term support even if it is unclear 
whether the minor can be sustained beyond the next few years in light of the teaching burden on faculty 
and required resources. This minor would be a positive addition as it would enable students to add to 
learning their disciplinary major and receive formal recognition for gaining valuable, real world 

 
7979



experiences while completing their college education.  Perhaps an option would be to offer the course for 
credit as an elective until enrollment is sufficient to justify a minor. 
 
 
 
cc: CAPRA Members 
 DivCo Members 
 Senate office  
 

 

2 
 

8080



U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A ,  M E R C E D  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACADEMIC SENATE, MERCED DIVISION UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED 
COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH  5200 NORTH LAKE ROAD 
DAVID C. NOELLE, CHAIR MERCED, CA  95344 
dnoelle@ucmerced.edu (209) 228-4369; fax (209) 228-7955 

 

 

BERKELEY  •  DAVIS  •  IRVINE  •  LOS ANGELES  •  MERCED  •  RIVERSIDE  •  SAN DIEGO  •  SAN FRANCISCO

 
    SANTA  BARBARA   •   SANTA CRUZ

 

 
 
January 23, 2015 
 
 
 
To:  Jian-Qiao Sun, Chair, Division Council  
  

From: David C. Noelle, Chair, Committee on Research (COR)  
 
 
Re:  Revised Community Research and Service Minor Proposal 
 
COR reviewed the revised proposal from SSHA to establish a minor in Community Research and 
Service.  While COR believes this minor would be beneficial to students, the committee echoes 
Undergraduate Council’s earlier concerns about faculty teaching credit and resources.  While the 
revised proposal clearly contains material intended to address these concerns, COR is not convinced 
that issues concerning sustainability with regard to resources have been resolved by this modified 
proposal.   
 
COR would also like to point out that the revised proposal’s plan to offer unrestricted faculty 
research support stipends to faculty who deliver relevant community-based research experiences 
may be in violation of APM 662-16, if those stipends may be taken as additional compensation. To 
review, APM 662-16 states:  
 
662-16 Restrictions 
 
Teaching activities ineligible for additional compensation are:  
 
a. Any course assigned by the department chair as part of the faculty member’s assigned teaching 
load, including:  
 
(1) A course in a self-supporting degree program (funds from the self-supporting degree program 
are used to pay for this portion of the faculty member’s assigned teaching load);  
 
(2) Extra teaching duties assigned in place of research and/or service; or  

 
8181



 
(3) Courses taught in less common modes or locations (e.g., online, off-site, at another campus).  
 
b. Extra courses that are taken on voluntarily are ineligible for additional compensation.  
 
Violation of APM 662-16 may be easily avoided by placing appropriate restrictions on the use of the 
proposed stipends. 
 
COR looks forward to seeing the aforementioned concerns addressed by SSHA. 
 
 
cc: COR members 
 Division Council members 
 Senate Office  
  
 

 

8282



U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A ,  M E R C E D  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACADEMIC SENATE, MERCED DIVISION UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED 
COMMITTEE ON FACULTY WELFARE, DIVERSITY & ACADEMIC FREEDOM  5200 NORTH LAKE ROAD 
RUDY ORTIZ, CHAIR MERCED, CA  95344 
rortiz@ucmerced.edu (209) 228-4369; fax (209) 228-7955 

 

 

BERKELEY  •  DAVIS  •  IRVINE  •  LOS ANGELES  •  MERCED  •  RIVERSIDE  •  SAN DIEGO  •  SAN FRANCISCO

 
    SANTA  BARBARA   •   SANTA CRUZ

 

 
 
 
January 23, 2015 
 
 
To:  Jian-Qiao Sun, Chair, Division Council 
  
From: Rudy Ortiz, Chair, Committee on Faculty Welfare, Diversity, and Academic Freedom (FWDAF)    

 
 
Re:  Revised Community Research and Service Minor Proposal 
 
 
 
Per Division Council’s request, FWDAF reviewed the revised proposal from SSHA to establish a minor 
in community research and service.  FWDAF echoes the concerns raised by CAPRA and Undergraduate 
Council as to faculty teaching workload, student enrollment, and resources needed to deliver the minor.  
 
FWDAF looks forward to endorsing the revised proposal if the aforementioned concerns are addressed. 
 
 
 
 
cc: Division Council members 

FWDAF members 
 Senate office 
  

 

 
8383



U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A ,  M E R C E D  
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
ACADEMIC SENATE, MERCED DIVISION UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED 
GRADUATE COUNCIL (GC) 5200 NORTH LAKE ROAD 
KATHLEEN HULL, CHAIR MERCED, CA 95343  
 (209) 228-6312 
  

 

 

 

 
BERKELEY  •  DAVIS  •  IRVINE  •  LOS ANGELES  •  MERCED  •  RIVERSIDE  •  SAN DIEGO  •  SAN FRANCISCO  

 
    SANTA  BARBARA   •   SANTA CRUZ 

 

January 22, 2015 
 
To:   Jian-Qiao Sun, Senate Chair 
   
From:  Kathleen Hull, Chair, Graduate Council (GC) 
 
Re:   GC Response- Revised CRS Minor Proposal  
 
In response to DivCo’s request, the Graduate Council reviewed the documents related to the 
revised proposal to establish the SSHA Community Research and Service (CRS) Minor. Members 
had no objections or comments.   
 
We appreciate the opportunity extended to opine.  
 
 
Cc: Graduate Council 
 Division Council  

Academic Senate Office  
   
  
 

8484



U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A ,  M E R C E D  
 
 
 
BERKELEY  •  DAVIS  •  IRVINE  •  LOS ANGELES  •  MERCED  •  RIVERSIDE  •  SAN DIEGO  •  SAN FRANCISCO                                                          SANTA  BARBARA    •    SANTA  CRUZ 
 
 
 

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, 
MERCED 5200 NORTH LAKE ROAD 
MERCED, CA 95343 
(209) 228-4629 

 
January 19, 2015 
 
To: Jian-Qiao Sun, Chair, Academic Senate 
From:  Laura Martin, Accreditation Liaison Officer (ALO) & Coordinator for Institutional Assessment 
  
Re: Revised Proposal for a Minor in Community Research and Service  
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the revised proposal for a minor in Community Research and 
Service.  There are no accreditation-related implications to establishing the minor, including in in relation to 
substantive change.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC:  Tom Peterson, Provost and Executive Vice Chancellor 

Susan Sims, Chief of Staff, Office of the Provost and Executive Vice Chancellor 
Elizabeth Whitt, Vice Provost and Dean of Undergraduate Education 

 

8585



UGC – January 28, 2015 meeting – Admissions Subcommittee Business (Item VIII) 

1 
 

UC System – Admissions Committees 
 
UC Berkeley 
Admissions, Enrollment and Preparatory Education (AEPE) 
 
AEPE considers and reports on policies, and practices affecting the composition of the Berkeley undergraduate 
student population. 
 
Charge and Membership: Bylaw 31 
 
A. Membership 
This Committee consists of at least six Senate members, normally serving three year staggered terms, the Assistant 
or Associate Vice Chancellor-Admissions and Enrollment, as a voting member, two student members, the Director 
of Undergraduate Admissions, as a non-voting member. The student members are appointed, and shall serve, in 
accordance with the provisions of Bylaw 13C. 
 
B. Duties 
• This Committee considers and reports on matters involving admissions and enrollment at Berkeley. 
• This Committee exercises in the Division responsibilities regarding preparatory education that are assigned by 
the systemwide Senate Committee on Preparatory Education and by the Division. (EC 6.00) 
 
Link to Bylaws: http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/committees/re/berkeley-division-
manual/bylaws_10.29.14.pdf 
 
Meeting frequency: twice a month 
 

 
UC Davis 
Admissions and Enrollment  
 
Charge and Membership: Bylaw 50  
A. This committee shall consist of the Admissions Officer at Davis, ex officio, and five additional members, two 
undergraduate student representatives, one graduate student representative, and one representative appointed 
by the Davis Academic Federation. The chair of this committee, or the chair's designate from among the Senate 
members of the committee, excluding the Admissions Officer, shall be the representative on the Board of 
Admissions and Relations with Schools (BOARS). (Am. 6/9/92; 10/20/97) (Am. 12/15/1967) 
 
B.The duties of the committee shall be to consider matters involving admission and enrollment at Davis. (En. 
1/21/69) (Am. 12/15/1967) 
 
Meeting frequency: Twice a month 
 
 
 
 
 

8686

http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/committees/AEPE
http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/committees/re/berkeley-division-manual/bylaws_10.29.14.pdf
http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/committees/re/berkeley-division-manual/bylaws_10.29.14.pdf
http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/committees/re/berkeley-division-manual/bylaws_10.29.14.pdf
http://academicsenate.ucdavis.edu/committees/committee-list/admissions_enrollment.cfm
http://academicsenate.ucdavis.edu/bylaws_and_regulations/bylaws.cfm#50-


UGC – January 28, 2015 meeting – Admissions Subcommittee Business (Item VIII) 

2 
 

UC Irvine 
Council on Undergraduate Admissions and Relations with Schools (CUARS) 
 
Charge 
1. Make recommendations regarding policies on admissions, enrollments, and outreach activities to the 
administration and to the Academic Senate, and provide faculty coordination for outreach activities. 
2. Monitor outreach programs directed toward academic enrichment of the campus through a diverse student 
body, and advise the campus administration on the disbursement of any funds designated for such programs. 
3. Maintain liaison with the systemwide Board of Admissions and Relations with Schools (BOARS) in overseeing all 
matters relating to the admissions of undergraduate students.  
 
Membership: 
The Council on Undergraduate Admissions and Relations with Schools and Colleges shall consist of one (1) member 
from each Faculty offering an undergraduate degree, along with the Director of the Office of Admissions and 
Relations with Schools, and Ex-Officio. 
 
Subcommittees: 
Board of Admissions & Relations with Schools (BOARS) – regulates the policies and practices used in the 
admissions process that directly relates to the educational mission of the University and the welfare of students. 
The committee also recommends and directs efforts to improve the admissions process. 
 
Meeting frequency: once a month 
 

 
UCLA 
Council on Undergraduate Admissions and Relations with Schools (CUARS) 
 
Charge 
CUARS advises the Office of Undergraduate Admissions and Relations with Schools and the Chancellor's Office on 
matters pertaining to undergraduate admissions policy and helps formulate guidelines for admission to be used 
during the admission process. In order to learn what is involved in making actual admissions decisions, committee 
members read some sample student applications during the regular fall or winter quarters. 
CUARS establishes the holistic review parameters for selecting UCLA admittees from the larger pool of those who 
are UC eligible, while policies concerning admissibility to the University of California are made by The Board of 
Admissions and Relations with Schools (BOARS), the officers of the University, The Regents, and the voters of the 
state. Office of Undergraduate Admissions (UARS) makes the actual decisions with CUARS oversight. In addition, 
CUARS serves the Admissions Office as a conduit for faculty concerns and a reservoir of classroom experience, 
advising the Admissions Office about such matters as outreach efforts directed at the high schools and 
qualifications needed for success in particular disciplines. 
 
Membership 
The committee consists of eight faculty, one faculty is also a member of the UC Board of Admissions and Relations 
with Schools (BOARS), and two undergraduate student representatives. 
 
Meeting frequency: once a month 

8787

http://senate.uci.edu/committees/councils/council-on-undergraduate-admissions-relations-with-schools-cuars/
http://www.senate.ucla.edu/committees/cuars/
http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/senate/public/committees.php?action=committee_details&comm_name=BOARS
http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/senate/public/committees.php?action=committee_details&comm_name=BOARS
http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/regents/
http://www.admissions.ucla.edu/
http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/senate/committees/boars/
http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/senate/committees/boars/


UGC – January 28, 2015 meeting – Admissions Subcommittee Business (Item VIII) 

3 
 

UC Riverside 
Undergraduate Admissions Committee  
 
Charge 
The Undergraduate Admissions Committee advises the division and the administration on matters having to do 
with admissions and enrollment on the Riverside campus. 
 
It is the duty of the Undergraduate Admissions Committee to advise the Division and the administration on 
matters having to do with admissions and enrollment on the Riverside campus. These matters, which are the 
primary concern of the Undergraduate Admissions Committee, include but are not limited to: recruitment and 
outreach; special action admissions; articulation with community colleges; and relations with high schools and 
community colleges. (Am 5 Nov 87)(Am 19 May 09) 
 
Membership 
The Committee consists of seven members of the Division, one of whom shall be the Chair; one Divisional 
representative to the Board of Admissions and Relations with Schools; one undergraduate student representative, 
who shall not have the right to vote; and the Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs, ex officio, or his/her designee. The 
Chair can also serve as the Division representative in addition to his or her Chair duties.  
 
Meeting frequency: twice a month 
 

 
UC San Diego 
Admissions Committee  
 
This Committee considers and reports on matters involving undergraduate admissions. 
 
Charge (Bylaw 175 Admissions) 
A) This committee shall consist of nine ordinary members of the Division, including ex officio a College Provost, 
who shall be selected by the Council of Provosts, and the Assistant Vice Chancellor Enrollment 
Management/Registrar at San Diego, ex officio.  It shall also have two undergraduate student representatives, who 
shall not have the right to vote.  The Director of Admissions and Outreach and the Director of Student Research 
and Information may serve as consultants to the committee without vote, at the request of the committee.  One 
member of this committee, excluding the College Provost and the Assistant Vice Chancellor Enrollment 
Management/Registrar, shall be the San Diego member of the Senate Board of Admissions and Relations with 
School (BOARS).  The BOARS member shall normally serve in that capacity for a minimum of three years, not to 
exceed four years, after having served at least one year on the Divisional Committee, and shall remain a member 
of the Divisional Committee throughout the term of service as a member of BOARS. […] 
B) This committee shall consider and report on matters involving undergraduate admissions at San Diego. 
 
Membership 
9 Academic Senate members including ex officio a College provost and the Assistant Vice Chancellor Enrollment 
Management. 
 

8888

http://senate.ucr.edu/committee/?do=info&id=23
http://senate.ucsd.edu/committees/standing/admissions/committee-details


UGC – January 28, 2015 meeting – Admissions Subcommittee Business (Item VIII) 

4 
 

One Senate member serves on the University Board of Admissions and Relations with School (BOARS). Chair serves 
as a member of the Senate Council, the Senate-Administration Council, the Representative Assembly, and the 
Enrollment Planning Committee 
 
Meeting frequency: once a month  
 

 
UC Santa Barbara 
Committee on Admissions, Enrollment & Relations with Schools (CAERS) 
 
CAERS sets standards for undergraduate admissions and advises the Senate and the administration regarding 
policy and procedures related to admissions, enrollment, access, and relations with schools. 
 
Charge and Membership: Bylaw 87 
A. Purpose. 
To set standards and criteria for undergraduate admissions and monitor campus efforts to recruit and enroll an 
excellent and diverse undergraduate student body.  
B. Membership 

Members are selected to ensure broad representation of the academic departments and colleges that offer 
undergraduate curricula. The Committee consists of at least eight (8) Senate members with vote, appointed by 
the Committee on Committees. The Director of Admissions serves ex officio. One undergraduate student 
representative is appointed by the Associated Students. The Committee on Committees designates the chair 
and appoints one member to the Board of Admissions and Relations with Schools. The Committee may invite 
consultants and guests to meetings as deemed appropriate.  

C. Duties 
The Committee:  

1. determines criteria for undergraduate admissions;  
2. advises the Division and the administration regarding policy and practices related to admissions, 

access, enrollment, and relations with schools;  
3. requests the development of and analyzes institutional data needed to fully inform decisions;  
4. maintains liaison with the Board of Admissions and Relations with Schools and the Campus 

Enrollment Committee. (En 17 Oct 13) 
 
Meeting schedule not published 
 

 
UC Santa Cruz 
Committee on Admissions and Financial Aid (CAFA)  
CAFA considers admissions related matters such as eligibility requirements, financial aid, relations with schools, 
and sets campus admissions policy. CAFA considers the weighting of academic and non-academic criteria for the 
admissions process and appeals to eligibility, admissions, and financial aid decisions. The committee interfaces 
with multiple campus administrative units which implement and manage admissions related policies on an ongoing 
basis throughout the year. CAFA meets every other week. 
 
Charge (Bylaw 1.13.11) 

8989

https://senate.ucsb.edu/~councils.and.committees/?CAERS
https://senate.ucsb.edu/manual/bylaws/Chapter_III/Section_3/87/
http://senate.ucsc.edu/committees/cafa-committee-on-admissions-and-financial-aid/index.html
http://senate.ucsc.edu/manual/santacruz-division-manual/part-one-bylaws/chapter-thirteen-committees/13.11-cafa-charge/index.html


UGC – January 28, 2015 meeting – Admissions Subcommittee Business (Item VIII) 

5 
 

13.11.1 There are no fewer than seven and no more than nine Santa Cruz Division members. In addition, there are 
one non-senate teaching faculty representative, and no more than three student representatives. (Am 3 Dec 69, 24 
May 72, 17 Nov 75, 7 Nov 01, 21 May 04; CC 31 Aug 98; EC 18 Oct 91, 31 Aug 99, 31 Aug 04, 31 Aug 04) 
13.11.2 The Committee on Committees nominates a member to serve on the Board of Admissions and Relations 
with Schools. (EC 31 Aug 04) 
13.11.3 The Committee considers and reports on matters involving admissions, financial aid, and relations with 
schools. Its responsibility extends beyond the actual selection of applicants to include all matters within the 
purview of this Division concerning the procedures, policy, and criteria of selection. It is also responsible for 
formulating and evaluating campus policies governing financial aid and relations with schools. The Committee 
consults with campus and statewide administrations on these matters, and provides liaison among the various 
campus agencies. In the process of student selection, the Committee may obtain the assistance of other members 
of the University staff, including those who are not members of the Academic Senate. (Am 22 May 74; CC 31 Aug 
98, 31 Aug 04) 
 
Meeting frequency: twice a month  

9090



Campus Policies and Guidelines Concerning the Academic 
Calendar, RRR Week, Exams, and Commencement 

THE ACADEMIC CALENDAR 

Current Academic Calendar (link) 
• What guides the structure of the UC Berkeley Academic Calendar? 

A Joint Task Force on Exams was convened in September 2008 by Executive Vice Chancellor and 
Provost George Breslauer and Academic Senate Chair Mary Firestone to investigate and address a 
set of intertwined problems surrounding exam policies and exam administration on campus. The 
implementation of Task Force recommendations resulted in changes to the Academic Calendar 
intended to:  

(1) clarify, modernize, and streamline Senate procedures for approving alternative forms 
of final student assessment (other than the traditional three-hour written final exam),  

(2) refine campus policies for midterm and final exam scheduling,  
(3) revise the academic calendar to accommodate student desire for a longer reading 

period prior to final exams and to reduce scheduling conflicts for students (such as 
religious observances and commencement ceremonies), and  

(4) improve the communication and dissemination of information related to final exams to 
instructors, students, and administrators.  

In Spring 2014, following the campus open comment period, the following adjustments were 
made: begin Fall semester on a Wednesday; create a non-instructional day the Wednesday before 
the Thanksgiving holiday. Together, these adjustments allow the number of instructional days to 
remain at 73. 

• What are some of the policies that pertain to conflicts with the Academic Calendar? 
1. Accommodation of Religious Creed:  

In compliance with Education code, Section 92640(a), it is the official policy of the University of 
California at Berkeley to permit any student to undergo a test or examination, without penalty, 
at a time when that activity would not violate the student's religious creed, unless administering 
the examination at an alternative time would impose an undue hardship that could not 
reasonably have been avoided. Requests to accommodate a student's religious creed by 
scheduling tests or examinations at alternative times should be submitted directly to the faculty 
member responsible for administering the examination by the second week of the semester. 

Reasonable common sense, judgment and the pursuit of mutual goodwill should result in the 
positive resolution of scheduling conflicts. The regular campus appeals process applies if a 
mutually satisfactory arrangement cannot be achieved. 

2. Conflicts between extracurricular activities and academic requirements:  

The link to the complete guidelines is available on the Academic Senate website: 
http://tinyurl.com/schedconflictguidelines. 
 
A useful checklist to help instructors and students comply with the guidelines is available on the 
Center for Teaching and Learning website: http://teaching.berkeley.edu/checklist-scheduling-
conflicts-academic-requirements . 

http://registrar.berkeley.edu/CalendarDisp.aspx?terms=current
http://tinyurl.com/schedconflictguidelines
http://teaching.berkeley.edu/checklist-scheduling-conflicts-academic-requirements
http://teaching.berkeley.edu/checklist-scheduling-conflicts-academic-requirements


The Academic Senate has established Guidelines Concerning Scheduling Conflicts with Academic 
Requirements to address the issue of conflicts that arise between extracurricular activities and 
academic requirements. They specifically concern the schedules of student athletes, student 
musicians, those with out-of-town interviews, and other students with activities (e.g., classes 
missed as the result of religious holy days) that compete with academic obligations. The 
guidelines assign responsibilities as follows: 

-It is the instructor’s responsibility to give students a schedule, available on the syllabus 
in the first week of instruction, of all class sessions, exams, tests, project deadlines, field 
trips, and any other required class activities. 

-It is the student’s responsibility to notify the instructor(s) in writing by the second week 
of the semester of any potential conflict(s) and to recommend a solution, with the 
understanding that an earlier deadline or date of examination may be the most 
practicable solution. 

-It is the student’s responsibility to inform him/herself about material missed because of 
an absence, whether or not he/she has been formally excused. 

READING/REVIEW/RECITATION (RRR) WEEK 

The Academic Senate has posted new Reading, Review, and Recitation (RRR) Guidelines. Please 
review them at the following link. 

 
• What is RRR Week? 

 
Reading, Review, and Recitation (RRR) Week is the week following the end of formal class 
instruction and preceding the start of final exams and is intended for students to have free 
time to prepare for exams, to work on final papers and projects, and to participate in optional 
review sessions and meetings with instructors. RRR week is based on the pedagogical principle 
that students benefit from time devoted to synthesizing the course material learned over the 
course of the semester.  

• Do all undergraduate courses (including special studies courses) fall under the RRR 
policy? 

Yes. All undergraduate courses, including special studies courses, fall under the RRR policy.  

• Do graduate courses fall under the RRR policy? 

Graduate courses do not necessarily follow the same system-wide or campus regulations as 
those for undergraduate courses, and more instructor discretion in the scheduling and duration 
of assignments and exams is allowed. However, instructors of graduate courses are 
encouraged to give their students the benefits of RRR week for synthesis and review and to 
avoid formal class sessions during RRR week. They should also be aware that graduate 
students who are GSIs may have teaching responsibilities during RRR week, including ones on 
a schedule different from that of the formal class instruction period.  

• Do professional school programs fall under the RRR policy? 

Professional schools with programs on unique academic calendars are exempted from RRR 
week policy. Undergraduate courses in professional school programs on the regular academic 
calendar are subject to the RRR policy. Graduate courses in professional school programs on 

http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/committees/coci/rrrguidelinesweb_1.pdf


the regular academic calendar are encouraged to give their students the benefits of RRR week 
for synthesis and review; however, they do not necessarily follow the same system-wide or 
campus regulations as those for undergraduate courses (see the preceding FAQ on graduate 
courses).  

• When is the "last day of instruction"? 

The “last day of instruction" corresponds to the last day of the RRR period, since RRR days are 
counted as days of instruction by the state legislature and in federal financial aid guidelines. 
The academic calendar includes a notation for the end of formal classes as well as for the "last 
day of instruction" to mark this distinction.  

• How is RRR week different from the previous UC Berkeley "dead days" or "dead 
week"?   

On the previous calendar, the term "dead days" referred colloquially to the two days between 
the end of classes and the start of final exams. "Dead week" referred for some to the 15th 
week of classes, based on the 1984 and 1991 Academic Senate recommendations that 
instructors not present any new material the 15th week of classes. This reconfirmed 
earlier guidelines issued by the UC Office of the President in 1954. In contrast, the new RRR 
week is intended both to provide more time for students to study between the end of classes 
and the beginning of final exams and to serve as a time of active engagement between 
instructors and students for consultations, reviews, and feedback. Instructors are expected to 
be in attendance as during other days of instruction and to interact with students through 
individual consultations and/or optional activities that may vary depending on the nature of the 
course. Thus, RRR days are counted as days of instruction, even though formal classes do not 
meet during this period.  

• What types of learning and teaching activities are encouraged during RRR week?   
Instructors are encouraged to use the RRR week for the following activities: 

 Synthesis and review of course material by students on their own or in 
study groups. 

 Work on final projects and papers by students. 
 Optional review sessions. 
 Optional recitation activities such as poster sessions, oral presentations of 

research and debates. 
 Required submission of papers, projects, or other homework assignments 

that are not substitute forms of final assessment.  
Activities may include both face-to-face and electronic modes of contact and communication. 
Activities should be optional, except in special cases noted in the exceptions below.  
Instructors are encouraged to schedule recitations outside RRR week whenever possible, but time 
and venue constraints may make the RRR period the only feasible time to do so. In such cases, 
instructors should maximize flexibility and scheduling options because students are likely to have 
other academic commitments during the RRR week. 

 

• What types of activities should not be scheduled during RRR week? 
The following activities should not be scheduled during RRR week: 

 Mandatory exams, quizzes, or activities (exceptions noted below). 
 Required submission of papers or projects that are assigned in lieu of a 

written final exam. 
Instructors are encouraged to give students the full benefit of the RRR week for consultation 
with their instructors and revision. Due dates should ideally be set for the day on which the 

http://www.ucop.edu/ucophome/coordrev/policy/5-02-57.html


written final exam would have been given and may not be set any earlier than the first day of 
the final exam period. 

• Are there any exceptions granted for mandatory scheduled activities during RRR 
week? 

A limited number of exceptions are automatically granted for "special format" courses, such as 
performance- or studio-based courses, and for courses that require a capstone presentation 
that cannot be scheduled prior to RRR week due to time and venue constraints. Instructors are 
encouraged to schedule these activities outside of RRR week whenever possible. However, the 
campus recognizes that such courses may need to use the flexible scheduling opportunities 
presented by the RRR week for mandatory culminating performances, studio critiques, or 
capstone presentations that count toward students' final grades, particularly those activities 
that may require special venues.  

Additionally, an exception may be granted for make-up classes necessitated by lengthy 
disruptions such as campus closure (see also COCI’s Guidelines for Single-Incident Disruptions 
of Classes). 

• Are there campus resources for instructors seeking to strategize classroom activities 
around RRR Week? 

The Center for Teaching and Learning provides a number of suggestions that instructors may 
find useful when planning a syllabus (http://teaching.berkeley.edu/ideas-rrr-week).  

• As a student, what recourse do I have if my instructor is not following the RRR week 
policies for my undergraduate course? 

Students are encouraged to discuss the activity, assignment, or due date under question with 
their instructor(s), either individually or as a group. Good communication between instructors 
and students is an important first step.  

If you do not feel comfortable approaching the instructor or if such discussion does not provide 
a satisfactory outcome and if it still seems that RRR week activities for a particular course 
violate campus policy, students have several options. Students may follow up with: 

o the Chair of the department in which the course is taught 
o The Ombuds Office For Students and Postdoctoral Appointees – this office provides an 

informal dispute resolution process and can be contacted at any point, including 
consultation before talking with the instructor or the department chair 

o The ASUC Student Advocate’s Office, Academic Division – a student-run organization 
that can help students with academic disputes.  

• I am an instructor and I would like to hold an optional review session for my class 
during RRR week. Can I use my regularly scheduled class time and room for the 
review session?   

Instructors may request their regularly-scheduled room for holding optional activities during 
RRR week through the “opt in” process. Instructors must inform the department scheduler of 
all RRR week classroom needs by the 9th week of the semester. If an instructor does not 
opt-in to reserve a room, a room will not be held. An instructor may also request a room 
reservation that differs from their regularly-scheduled place and time through the same opt-in 
process. 

First priority will be given to instructors in their regularly-scheduled classrooms, provided they 
indicate their needs by the 9th week of the semester. The Academic Senate views this “opt in” 
policy as important because it clearly differentiates the RRR week from regular instruction and 

http://teaching.berkeley.edu/ideas-rrr-week
http://students.berkeley.edu/Ombuds/
http://advocate.berkeley.edu/


frees up rooms for instructors to hold RRR activities outside of their normally scheduled class 
times. 

• How will the RRR days affect the work of GSIs? What types of activities will be 
expected of GSIs during this period? 

During the RRR period GSIs are expected to work the number of hours stipulated by their 
official Letter of Appointment. 

The faculty member serving as the Instructor of Record for the course should convey to GSIs 
what activities will be required of them during the RRR week. Possible activities may include 
conducting voluntary face-to-face or online review sessions, meeting with study groups, 
offering additional face-to-face or electronic office hours, responding to individual student 
questions, and giving student feedback on written work. 

In the event that the activities required of GSIs during the RRR week are significantly different 
from those outlined in the Letter of Appointment or Supplemental Documentation, an updated 
Supplemental Documentation letter reflecting these changes must be sent to the GSI as soon 
as reasonably possible. 

As with faculty, GSIs teaching in undergraduate courses may not introduce new material 
during the RRR week, nor may they administer final exams or have due dates for final written 
work during RRR week. They should also be made aware that student participation in all 
activities during the RRR week is voluntary (except in those courses with pre-approved 
exemptions). 

In considering the activities that will be required of GSIs, faculty must ensure that the number 
of hours required for assigned activities falls within the hours relating to the percentage of the 
Academic Student Employee (ASE)'s appointment. For more information, see Article 31, 
"Workload," of Collective Bargaining Agreement for ASEs.  

• Can written final examinations in undergraduate courses be given before or during 
RRR week? 

No. Academic Senate and campus policies prohibit the scheduling of written final examinations 
before or during the RRR week.  

• Can written final exams or alternative forms of final exams for undergraduate 
courses be administered or be due before the final exam period? 

No. Academic Senate and campus policies regarding undergraduate courses prohibit written 
final exams or alternative forms of final exams from being administered or due before the final 
exam period. A limited exception is provided for "special format" courses, such as 
performance- or studio-based courses, that require a capstone presentation as an alternative 
form of final exam that cannot be held during the final exam period due to venue or time 
constraints. 

Can final papers or final projects in undergraduate courses that are assigned in lieu 
of a written final exam be due before or during RRR week? 

No. Papers or projects that are assigned in lieu of a written final exam cannot be due before or 
during the RRR week, according to Academic Senate and campus policies. Instructors are 
encouraged to give students the full benefit of the RRR week for consultation with their 
instructors and revision. Due dates for final papers or projects that substitute for final exams 
should ideally be set for the day on which the written final exam would have been given and 
may not be set any earlier than the first day of the final exam period. The only exception is 
several special cases noted above.  

http://ucnet.universityofcalifornia.edu/labor/bargaining-units/bx/docs/bx_2010-2013_31_workload.pdf
http://ucnet.universityofcalifornia.edu/labor/bargaining-units/bx/docs/bx_2010-2013_31_workload.pdf
http://registrar.berkeley.edu/RRRFAQ.html#RRR_9_exceptions


• Can papers, projects or other homework assignments that are not substitute forms of 
final assessment be due during the RRR week? 

Yes. Papers, projects or other homework assignments that are not substitute forms of final 
assessment may be due during the RRR week.  

• Can written final exams or alternative forms of final exams for undergraduate 
courses be administered or be due before the final exam period?   

No. Academic Senate and campus policies regarding undergraduate courses prohibit written 
final exams or alternative forms of final exams from being administered or due before the final 
exam period. A limited exception is provided for "special format" courses, such as 
performance- or studio-based courses, that require a capstone presentation as an alternative 
form of final exam that cannot be held during the final exam period due to venue or time 
constraints (see the Academic Senate Guidelines for RRR Week for more information).  

FINAL EXAMS 
• What is the campus final exam schedule? When and where is this information available? 

The four exam periods are 8-11 am, 11:30 am-2:30 pm, 3-6 pm, and 7-10 pm, during five days of 
exams, given Monday through Friday. 

The final exam group is listed on the Online Schedule of Classes during Tele-BEARS enrollment for 
all formally-approved undergraduate courses with written final examinations, and for graduate 
courses in which written final exams are typically given. 

Instructors must also state the date and time of the written final exam or the due date for the final 
paper, project, or other alternative final assessment in the course syllabus given out during the 
first week of classes.  

• Why does the campus use a four-final-exams-per-day schedule? 

By following a four-per-day exam schedule, the campus is able to create a full week of RRR days, 
eliminate Saturday exams (and thus conflicts with Saturday religious observances and weekend 
family obligations), and eliminate conflicts between commencement activities and final 
examinations. In addition to these many benefits, this academic calendar brings the Berkeley 
campus exam schedule in line with other UC campuses, all of which use a four-exam-per-day 
schedule successfully (except for UC Irvine with a five-exam-per-day schedule).  

• The evening exam may end as late as 10 pm. What are my options for night safety? 

Safety Patrol Officers (SPOs) will be assigned to patrol venues where evening final exams are 
taking place. 

UCPD's Night Safety Services are FREE to all, 365 nights a year, and will be fully staffed during 
finals week. For info, call 2-WALK, [(510) 642-9255], or visit Bearwalk 2.0 Night Safety Services. 

• Do large numbers of students have three or more final exams per day? 

On the four-exam-per-day schedule, less than 4% of students (984 of 25,540) had three exams 
scheduled in one day in fall 2010, and only a very small handful of students (20 of 25,540) had 
four exams scheduled in one day. These numbers represent an upper-limit of students. The actual 
numbers are likely lower for two reasons: 

o The numbers do not include instructors who assigned an alternative form of final exam 
(paper or project) and did not hold an in-class final, but did not have an exemption. 

http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/committees/coci/rrrguidelinesweb_1.pdf
http://police.berkeley.edu/programsandservices/campus_safety/


o They also do not take into account students who received voluntary accommodation from 
instructors. 

The percentages are also less than what we might expect from a random distribution, suggesting 
that, for the most part, students are able to optimize their exam schedules successfully. In 
addition, an effort is made to distribute exam groups across the week to minimize these 
percentages, particularly for students taking large, lower division courses in which written final 
examinations are common. Instructors can help maintain these low percentages by not requesting 
a change in final exam times except under exceptional circumstances; if such circumstances do 
apply, instructors should request such a change at least two weeks before the first day of 
instruction for that semester (see Final Exam Time Change FAQ below).  

• What can students do to optimize their final exam schedules?  

First, consider the exam schedule when planning your class schedule and enrolling in classes. Each 
class is assigned to a final exam group that you will see on Tele-BEARS and the Online Schedule of 
Classes. You may be able to avoid having multiple final exams in one day by enrolling in a different 
lecture section of the same course, if available. It is also possible that one or more of the courses 
may have an alternative form of final exam, such as a final paper or project, which should be 
announced in the syllabus at the first class meeting. If you confirm that sit-down final exams are 
required and that you will in fact have three or four exams on the same day, you should speak 
with your instructor right away (during the first two weeks of class) to see if alternate exam 
arrangements can be made. Instructors are not obligated to provide an alternate exam day for 
you, but they may be able to assist you if they have sufficient advance notice.  

• I am an instructor and I would like to have alternate seating for my final exam. How do I 
request this?  

All classes are assigned an exam room with seats equal to the enrollment by the end of the 
seventh week, unless alternate seating (i.e., one empty seat between students) is requested. To 
secure alternate seating for an undergraduate exam, instructors must notify departmental 
schedulers of their needs at the earliest possible date (and no later than the fifth week of class). 
The department scheduler will work with the Office of the Registrar to make the appropriate 
accommodation and room assignment. Requests for “double alternate seating” (i.e., two empty 
seats between students) cannot be accommodated due to space limitations.  

• Are all undergraduate courses required to have a written final exam? 

UC System-wide Academic Senate Regulations 770 and 772 stipulate that all undergraduate 
courses require a written (when practicable) final exam [SR 770 & 772]. However, these 
regulations also stipulate that exemptions from these regulations for individual courses may be 
approved by each campus' Committee on Courses of Instruction (COCI). The Joint Task Force on 
Exams, with input from key Academic Senate committees, recommended that campus procedures 
for approving alternative forms of final student assessments be clarified, modernized, and 
streamlined in order to reflect changes in pedagogy in a number of academic disciplines and to 
facilitate compliance with the system-wide regulations. These new procedures are described in the 
following FAQs.  

• Are special studies courses numbered 98/198, including but not limited to DE-Cal 
courses, required to have a final exam?   

No, the Committee on Courses of Instruction (COCI) has approved a permanent exemption from 
the final exam requirement for special studies courses numbered 98/198, including but not limited 
to DE-Cal courses. Assignments may be due in the last week of classes, as long as they are not 
designated as final exams or assessments. In general, such assignments should not have 
significantly more weight than other assignments given during the semester.  

• Are graduate courses required to have a final exam? 

http://registrar.berkeley.edu/RRRFAQ.html#FINAL_13_undergrad_time_change
http://schedule.berkeley.edu/
http://schedule.berkeley.edu/
http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/senate/manual/rpart3.html#r770


No, final examinations are not required in graduate courses; they are optional at the discretion of 
the instructor. 

• What alternatives are there to written final exams for undergraduate courses? 

As methods of pedagogy have changed in a number of academic fields over the years, alternative 
forms of final assessment, such as final projects or papers, have increasingly been substituted for 
a traditional, three-hour written final exam. The Center for Teaching and Learning provides a 
number of recommendations for alternative methods of final assessment. The COCI procedures for 
approving new courses or for making changes to existing courses recognize that such methods of 
assessment are not exceptional or unusual and may indeed be preferred in many disciplines.  

• As an instructor, how do I request a temporary or permanent alternative to a written 
final exam in an undergraduate course?   

Instructors have several means of establishing, either for a given semester or permanently, a final 
student assessment other than the traditional in-person three-hour final exam: 

To change the format of a final student assessment for a course for a given semester, the 
instructor need only inform the students in the syllabus given out during the first week of classes 
and obtain approval from the chair of the department and, if applicable, the department's teaching 
and curriculum committee. The chair will then inform the Registrar (via the departmental 
scheduler) before the first day of classes that s/he has approved this form of final student 
assessment and that a room for a written final exam will not be needed. Such approvals by the 
chair can occur on a semester-by-semester basis indefinitely. 

To request a permanent change to the final student assessment format for a course or to eliminate 
a final exam all together, a Course Approval Form (CAF) should be completed and submitted to 
COCI for approval. The CAF form reflecting this new policy and procedure is now available on 
the UC Berkeley Academic Senate website and is explained in the updated COCI Handbook. Note 
that a permanent change goes with the course and not the instructor. Thus, if a different instructor 
wishes to change the final assessment format of a course, either the department chair can approve 
such a change for the course for that semester or another CAF for the change needs to be 
submitted to COCI.  

• Can an instructor change the day and/or time of a written final examination for an 
undergraduate course from that officially scheduled by the Registrar?   

In general, no. Under exceptional circumstances, an instructor may request a change to the exam 
group for a course from that originally scheduled by the Office of the Registrar and published in 
the Online Schedule of Classes. To do so, s/he should submit this request at least two weeks 
before the first day of instruction for that semester to the Office of the Registrar and COCI on 
the Petition for Exam Group Change form in order for COCI to review the request prior to the start 
of instruction. Note that COCI will not review requests after the fifth week of classes. If the request 
for a change in final exam time is received by COCI too late to review the request before the start 
of instruction (but in any case no later than the fifth week of classes) and it is approved, the final 
exam must also still be given at the originally scheduled time in addition to the new time. This is 
intended to ensure fairness for students who have carefully planned the distribution of their final 
examinations based on information in the Online Schedule of Classes and on the syllabus given out 
the first week of classes and to prevent students from feeling coerced into joining a "unanimous" 
class vote to change an exam time. Instructors may accommodate religious or other scheduling 
conflicts that a student or a small group of students in their course may have with the official final 
exam time without obtaining COCI approval (see, for example, the Religious Creed Policy and 
the Checklist for Scheduling Conflicts with Academic Requirements).  

• Can an instructor change the method of final student assessment for an undergraduate 
course after the first week of classes? 

http://teaching.berkeley.edu/alternative-methods-final-assessments
http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/committees/coci
http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/committees/coci/handbookTOC
http://schedule.berkeley.edu/
http://academic-senate.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/committees/coci/finalexamgroupchangenov09.pdf
http://schedule.berkeley.edu/
http://registrar.berkeley.edu/DisplayMedia.aspx?ID=Religious%20Creed%20Policy.pdf
http://teaching.berkeley.edu/checklist-scheduling-conflicts-academic-requirements


If an instructor wishes to change the method of final student assessment (e.g., paper, project, or 
written exam) after the first week of classes for an undergraduate course, the department chair 
must give approval (as noted above) and students must be given the option of being evaluated by 
the method originally described in the syllabus given out the first week of classes. [Back] 

• Can an instructor change the day and/or time of a written final examination for a 
graduate course from that officially scheduled by the Registrar? 

As noted above, final examinations are not required in graduate courses; they are optional at the 
discretion of the instructor. Changes to the schedule of a graduate course’s final examination do 
not require COCI’s approval, but the department must notify Classroom Scheduling 
at osoc@berkeley.edu.  

• As a student, what recourse do I have if my instructor is not following the campus final 
exam policies for my undergraduate course? 

Students are encouraged to discuss issues with final exam scheduling or format with their 
instructor(s), either individually or as a group. Good communication between instructors and 
students is an important first step.  

If you do not feel comfortable approaching the instructor or if such discussion does not provide a 
satisfactory outcome and if it still seems that RRR week activities for a particular course violate 
campus policy, students have several options. Students may follow up with: 

o the Chair of the department in which the course is taught 
o The Ombuds Office For Students and Postdoctoral Appointees – this office provides an 

informal dispute resolution process and can be contacted at any point, including 
consultation before talking with the instructor or the department chair 

o The ASUC Student Advocate’s Office, Academic Division – a student-run organization that 
can help students with academic disputes.  

• As a member of the UC Berkeley community, how do I find out more about my rights and 
responsibilities surrounding final exams? 

Students, instructors, department chairs, the Registrar, and other campus groups have certain 
rights and responsibilities with regard to final examinations. Knowledge of these will help keep the 
system running smoothly and minimize conflicts and misunderstandings. Please visit the Office of 
the Registrar's Final Exam Responsibilities website (which is also accessible from the Online 
Schedule of Classes) for concise and up-to-date information as well as links to more detailed 
discussions of campus policies and procedures.  

MIDTERM EXAMS 

• As an instructor, what are my responsibilities in scheduling midterm examinations? 

The specific date and time of midterm exams that will be held outside the regularly scheduled class 
time must be stated in writing in the syllabus distributed by instructors during the first week of 
classes. Conflicts should be handled as outlined in the Religious Creed Policy or Checklist for 
Scheduling Conflicts with Academic Requirements for extracurricular activities.  

• As an instructor, how do I request a room for a midterm examination I want to schedule 
at a time and place different from that of the class? 

A large number of high enrollment classes combine midterms exams for sections into one date 
necessitating alternate seating in campus auditoriums. As enrollment increases for these large 
classes, there may not be enough seats within the available auditoriums to accommodate alternate 

http://registrar.berkeley.edu/RRRFAQ.html#FINAL_EXAM_FAQs_questions
mailto:osoc@berkeley.edu
http://students.berkeley.edu/Ombuds/
http://advocate.berkeley.edu/
http://registrar.berkeley.edu/finals.html
http://schedule.berkeley.edu/
http://schedule.berkeley.edu/
http://registrar.berkeley.edu/DisplayMedia.aspx?ID=Religious%20Creed%20Policy.pdf
http://teaching.berkeley.edu/checklist-scheduling-conflicts-academic-requirements
http://teaching.berkeley.edu/checklist-scheduling-conflicts-academic-requirements


seating Faculty should contact your departmental scheduler as early as possible to request a room 
for a midterm exam, since the campus is now at capacity for large rooms during key weeks in the 
semester. It is highly recommended that requests are submitted prior to Tele-BEARS 
enrollment to avoid student schedule conflicts. Your scheduler will submit the request to the 
Office of the Registrar. In some cases, the Office of the Registrar may be able to notify you of 
potential conflicts with other large enrollment courses.  

• As a student, what are my responsibilities in regard to midterm exams?  
 
Students are responsible for making sure they check their class syllabus and/or Midterm Exam 
Search for midterm exam dates that will be held outside of regularly scheduled class time and 
must resolve any class conflicts. Midterm exams held within regularly scheduled class time will be 
communicated to the students via the faculty.  
 

• Where can students search for information about midterm exams that have been 
scheduled outside of the regularly-scheduled class time? 

The Office of the Registrar maintains a searchable schedule (Midterm Exam Search) for courses 
that will have midterms outside of the regularly-scheduled class time.  
 

• As a student, what are my responsibilities if I have a conflict with a midterm 
examination? 

Students are responsible for notifying instructors within the first two weeks of classes about 
foreseeable conflicts and for proposing potential solutions to the conflicts. For unanticipated 
conflicts, students should contact their instructor as soon as possible. Conflicts should be resolved 
according to the Religious Creed Policy or as outlined in the Checklist for Scheduling Conflicts with 
Academic Requirements for extracurricular activities. Be aware that multiple, unresolvable conflicts 
with extracurricular activities may prohibit you from taking a particular course.  

COMMENCEMENT 

• Can commencement ceremonies be held during final exam week? 

Campus policy requires that graduation ceremonies must take place after final examinations have 
concluded, with the exception of professional schools with graduate students only.  

• I am a graduating student. How do I find out when the Commencement Convocation and 
my departmental commencement ceremony will be held? 

Information about Commencement Convocation, the campus-wide event for all graduating 
students hosted by the Chancellor, is posted online: Commencement. 

Information about departmental commencement activities will be posted on this site as they are 
confirmed. If your department’s information is not listed, please contact the unit directly.  

http://schedule.berkeley.edu/srchmidexspring.html
http://schedule.berkeley.edu/srchmidexspring.html
http://schedule.berkeley.edu/srchmidexspring.html
http://registrar.berkeley.edu/DisplayMedia.aspx?ID=Religious%20Creed%20Policy.pdf
http://teaching.berkeley.edu/checklist-scheduling-conflicts-academic-requirements
http://teaching.berkeley.edu/checklist-scheduling-conflicts-academic-requirements
https://commencement.berkeley.edu/

	Wednesday, January 28, 2015, 3:00pm-4:30pm
	LOCATION SE 300
	All documents available on the UGC1415 UCMCROPS site
	1. UGC_Minutes12.10.14Draft.pdf
	Wednesday, December 10, 2014

	2. BOARS1-9-15agenda.pdf
	University of California Academic Senate

	6. CAPRA2DivCo_CRS minor revised proposal_1-23-15.pdf
	CAPRA2DivCo_CRS minor_5-6-14.pdf
	Memo  Packet to UGC re CRS Minor Proposal 042314.pdf
	Memo to UGC re Community Research & Service Proposal 042214
	Mark Aldenderfer

	Community Research and Service Minor Proposal Packet 041414
	CRS Minor Proposal Memo to SSHA Curriculum Committee
	Community Research and Service Minor Proposal 040914
	Program learning outcomes
	Graduates with a minor in Community Research and Service will demonstrate the knowledge, skill, ability, attitude and disposition to:
	1. Analyze core knowledge about local San Joaquin Valley and Sierra Nevada conditions including global analogs as related to the transformation of poverty to prosperity
	Requirements for the Community Engaged Research minor
	Community Research and Service Minor*
	Program Learning Outcomes
	Graduates with a minor in Community Research and Service will demonstrate the knowledge, skill, ability, attitude and disposition to:
	1. Identify and clarify core knowledge about local San Joaquin Valley and Sierra Nevada conditions including global analogs as related to the transformation of poverty to prosperity

	CRS minor proposal supporting documents




	10. ALO2_Senate Chair RE Minor Community Research Proposal 1 19 2015.pdf
	January 19, 2015

	11. UCsAdmissionsCommittees.pdf
	berkeley.edu
	Admissions, Enrollment, & Preparatory Education | Academic Senate


	UCB RRR Week.pdf
	THE ACADEMIC CALENDAR
	Current Academic Calendar (link)
	READING/REVIEW/RECITATION (RRR) WEEK
	 What is RRR Week?
	Reading, Review, and Recitation (RRR) Week is the week following the end of formal class instruction and preceding the start of final exams and is intended for students to have free time to prepare for exams, to work on final papers and projects, and ...
	FINAL EXAMS




